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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
Introduction

The Board of Directors of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited has the pleasure to present their annual report and the audited
financial statements for the vear ended 31st December 2021, which disclose the state of affairs of the Bank. This report has
been prepared in accordance with the Tanzania Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS) No. 1, Directors’ Report.

1. Incorporation

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Bank of Baroda, India was incorporated under the
Tanzanian Companies Act, 2002 on 4th December, 2003. The bank commenced business on 13th October 2004 with its first
branch in Dar es Salaam. The bank opened its second branch in Arusha on 11th August 2007. Its third branch was opened in
Kariakoo on 11th June 2013 and fourth branch in Mwanza on 21st July 2014.

2. Vision & Mission Statement
Vision: To be a leading provider of the complete range of financial service solutions operating locally and internationally to all
segments under one roof.

Mission: Leverage our local and global expertise to be a leading provider of complete range of financial service solutions by
delivering high quality innovative and world-class products while maintaining the highest standards of governance and ethics.

3. Corporate Values

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited is determined to creating an unwavering guide through the path to growth, intergrity and
passion.

4. Principal activities

The Principal activity of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited is to provide banking and related services stipulated by the
Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006. These includes but not limited to provision of banking services to a range of
private, business, and charity customers. The bank is providing full-fledged banking operations and serving the people in all
walks of life, The bank is financing businessmen, traders, manufacturers, retailers, individuals, employces of well established
companies, institutions, government departments, and Small and Medium sized Enterprises (SMEs). Those products includes
Savings products, Loan products, Trade Finance products, Treasury products, Remittances, SMS Alerts, and a range of E-
banking products.

The bank have been implemeting its first year of the five year Business Strategy for the period from 2021 to 2025 with a thrust
of providing best banking services to the community and achieve a total business of Tsh 326 billion for the year then ended.
There has been no significant change in the principal activities of the bank during the financial year ended 3 1st December 2021.

5. Objectives
The following are the main objectives of the Bank:

To provide banking and related services stipulated by the Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006; To provide banking
services to a range of private, business, and charity customers; To provide full-fledged banking operations and serving the
people in all walks of life. The bank is financing businessmen, traders, manufacturers, retailers, individuals, employees of well
established companies, institutions, government departments, and Small and Medium Sized Enterprises (SMEs). Those
products include Savings products, Loan products, Trade Finance products, Treasury products, Remittances, SMS Alerts, and
a range of E-banking products; and To promote easy access to financial services for entrepreneurs running micro, small and
medium sized enterprises (MSMEs).




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

6. Annual General Meeting

The 17th Annual General Mecting (AGM) for the financial yecar 2021 held as per the provision of the Companies Act held on
18th June 2021 at 2.00 PM where, receipt of proxy was taken as read and accepted on behalf of Bank of Baroda and Mr.
Suresh L. Gajjar, Mr. Rajendra Sadashiv Mohrir, Managing Director represented shareholders on the basis of proxy given by
by the shareholders. Mr. Erasto Mwampeswa and Mr. Alfred Luvanda represented the Regulator (Bank of Tanzania) as the
imain stakeholder of the bank and Mr. Vishwanshu Trivedi and Mr. Jasper Iningu represented the statutory auditor of the bank,
M/S Bakertilly DGP & Co

The sharcholders considered the financial statements, accounting policics, Auditors Report thereon and the Directors report
including notes attached to the Financial Statements for 17th Accounting Year.

The chairman, Mr. Shanti Lal Jain, proposed and Mr. Rajendra Sadashiv Mohrir, Director seconded that, the following
resolutions be adopted as an Ordinary Resolution;

Passed unanimously the resolution that, the Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 3 1st December 2020, the
Auditors’ Report thereon and the Directors’ Report attached thereto and Accounting Policies including the notes.

Passed unanimously the appointment of M/S NEXIA SJ Tanzania of P.0.Box 12729, Dar es Salaam as external auditors
of the Bank holding office from conclusion of the 17th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 18th Annual General
Meeting subject to the provision of section 170(1) of the Campanies Act, 2002 and Regulation 5(1) of the Banking and
Financial Institutions (External Auditors) Regulation 2014 made under section 22(4) of the Banking and Financial Institutions
Act, 2006.

7. Composition of the Board of Directors
The Directors of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited who held office during the year are as follows.

Oualificatio | Appointed/ |Date of Date of
Name of Directors Position Age ns/Disciplin | Resigned |Appointment Resignation
Mr. Shanthi Lal Jain Chairman 56 Banker Resigned  |5-Sep-2019 31-Aug-2021
Mr. D. Ananda Kumar Member 56 Banker R&s:gned 20-Feb-2019  |15-Mar-2021
Dr. P. M. K. Ngatuni Member 56 Accountant Resigned 30-Nov-2015  |15-Nov-2021
Mr. Joydeep Dutta Roy Member 47 Banker Appointed _|16-Jun-2021 __ |Not applicable
Dr. Immanueli D. Mnzava Member 57 Accountant | Continuing |26-Oct-2017 _ |Not applicable
Dr. Emmanuel Sadiki Member 59 Accountant | Continuing |8-Apr-2018  |Not applicable
Dr. Saganga M. Kapaya Member 45 Accountant | Continuing |2-Jun-2018 Not applicable
Dr. Bupe J. Mwakyusa Member 45 Accountant | Continuing |2-Jun-2018 Not applicable
Dr. Kadida Mashaushi Member 57 Accountant | Appointed [22-Dec-2021 _[Not applicable
Mr. Rajendra S. Mohrir g.mg“:g 57 Banker Resigned [6-Dec-2017  [21-Jan-2022
Mr. Vikash K. Pandey ID?’ Ma’:agmg 33 Banker Appointed |16-Jun-2021  [Not applicable
. ; Managing : .

Mr. Aditya Narayan Singh i 54 Banker Appointed |14-Jan-2022  |Not applicable
Mr. Debadatta Chand Chairman 51 Banker Appointed | 14-Jan-2022 | Not applicable

TheCompanysecrmryasattbcdatcofthisreportwasMr, Viann S. Komba of T/A Leop & Viann
Associates. Mr. Viann S. Komba of T/A Leop & Viann Associates is also the tax consultant of the bank for
the year then ended.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
8. Corporate Governance

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited Board of Directors consists of nine (9) directors. With exception of the Managing Director
and the Deputy Managing Director, no othe directors hold executive positions in the bank. Four of the board directors are non-
exccutives while two of them are Independent Directors. The board is responsible for safe custody and investment of
depositors’ funds. Consequently, the board commit sufficient time in the oversight of affairs of the bank including
identification of key risk areas, considering significant financial matters, reviewing the performance of management business
and ensuring a comprehensive system of internal control policies and procedures is operative in compliance with sound
corporate governance principles. The cffective oversight by the board for the overall responsibility of the bank entails
possession of necessary skills to make sound and independent judgments and be able to apply immediate remedial measures.
The board is required to meet at least four times in a year and delegates the day to day management of the business to the
Managing Director assisted by senior managent team. Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited is committed to the principles of
effective corporate governance recognizing the importance of integrity, transparancy and accountability.

The bank shall continue its endeavor to enhance its shareholders’ value by protecting their interest by ensuring performance at
all levels, and maximizing returns with optimal use of resources in its pursuit of excellence. The bank shall comply with not
only the statutory requirements, but also voluntarily formulate and adhere to a set of strong corporate governance practices.
The bank belicves in setting high standards of ethical values, transparency and a disciplined approach to achieve excellence in
all its sphere of activities. The bank shall strive hard to best serve the interests of its stakeholders comprising shareholders,
customers, government and society at large.

In connection with effective oversight, the board of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited during the vear has a responsibility to
ensure high standard of corporate governance through establishment and effective fnctioning of various board committees and
management in kev areas.

8.1 Board Committees

The following Board Committees were reconstituted during 2021. All the committees are made exclusively of non-executive
ating to the formulation of policies and assessment of its compliance, which

king performance

BoardAudﬁ_‘Board credrr—"'Board Risk

Name of Director Designation |Position Commiittee Committee Commiittee
1 |Dr. P. M. K. Ngatuni Director Member * N N
2 |Mr. Jovdeep Dutta Roy Director Member N * Y
3 |Dr. Immanueli D. Mnzava |Director Member N X *
4 |Dr. Emmanuel Sadiki Director Member Y N N
5 |Dr. Saganga M. Kapaya Director Member Y N N
6 |Dr. Bupe J. Mwakyusa Director Member N Y Y
7 |Dr. Kadida Mashaushi Director Member N N N

% -Chairman, Y: Member of the Committee, N: Non-member of the Committee
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
8. Corporate Governance(continued)
8.1 Board Committees (continued)

(i) Audit Committee

Report of the Dircctors

Meetings | Meeting

Name of Director Nationality Designation Period scheduled | attended
1 Dr. P.M. K. Ngatum Chairman Chairman 11 Months 4 4
Dr. Emmanuel Sadiki Member Member 12 Months 4 3
3 |Dr. Saganga M. Kapaya Member Member 12 Months 4 4

The Audit Committee provides directions to the bank including the organisation, operations and quality control of internal audit,
internal control weakness and inspection within the bank and follow-up of the suggestion of statutory/external audit of the bank
and Bank of Tanzania inspections.

The Committee also reviews the adequacy of internal control systems, structure of internal department, its staffing pattern and hold
discussions with the internal auditors/inspectors of any significant finding and follow-up action thereon. It also reviews the
financial and risk management policies of the bank.

(ii) Credit Committee

The committec met 4 times during the year. The Managing Director, and the Senior Manager Credit participated in the meetings,
as invilees.

Meetings | Meeting

Name of Director Nationality Designation Period scheduled | attended
1__|Mr. Jovdeep Dutta Rov Indian Chairman 9 Months 3 3
2 |Mr. Devarakonda A. Kumar |Indian Chairman 3 Months 1 1
2 |Dr. Emmanuel D. Mnzava | Tanzanian Member 12 Months 4 4
3 |Dr. Bupe J. Mwakyusa Tanzanian Chairman 12 Months 4 4

The main function of the Credit Committee is to monitor performance and quality of the credit portfolio, appraise and approve
loans within its credit approval limit and recommend to the Board for approval facilities bevond its limit.

The Committee reviews Credit Policy at least once a year and ensures that it contains sound fundamental principles that facilitate
the identification, measurement, monitoring and control of credit risk as well as having appropriate plans and strategies for credit
risk management.

(iii)  Risk Committee

The committee met 4 times during the year. The Managing Director and the Head of Risk Management participated in the
meetings, as invitees.

Meetings | Meeting

Name of Director Nationality | Designation Period scheduled | attended
1 |Dr. Emmanuel D. Mnzava | Tanzanian Chairman 12 Months 4 4
2 |Mr. Jovdeep Duita Rov Indian Member 9 Months 3 3
3 |Dr. Bupe J. Mwakyusa Tanzanian Member 12 Months 4 4

The main function of the Risk Committee is to assist the Board in reviewing risk management strategies and policies and
recommend them for approval. It provides the Board with regular assessments of the group risk profile and monitors
implementation of risk management action plans.

The Committee also reviews adequacy and effectiveness of balance sheet management and its related risks through Asset Liability
Management Committee (ALCO) reports presented by Management to the Commitee every quarter.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

8. Corporate Governance(continued)

8.2 Management Team

The management of the Bank is under the Managing Director who is assisted by Deputy Managing Director and Senior Managers.
The unit heads and Branch heads also assisst the Managing Director in managing the bank. All Senior Managers and Unit heads
reports directly to the Managing Director. The Managing Director is the overall incharge of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited
responsible for planning, monitoring and business growth the main responsibilities of which includes regulatory compliance,
formulation of policies, liaison with stakeholders, product innovation and marketing.

The Deputy Managing Director oversee the Finance, Administration and Human Resources, Credit, Retail Banking, Treasury and
secretary to the Board. Treasury and Credit departments are headed by Senior Managers. Dar es Salaam and Arusha branches are
also headed by senior managers. The Operations of the Bank arc organized by the following department; Credit department,
Treasury and Forcign Exchange department, Finance department, Risk and Compliance department and Information Technology
department and Audit Department. Heads of departments are directly reporting to the Managing Director except the Internal
Auditor who reports directly to the Board Audit Committee.

8.2.1 Management Committees

The following Sub-Committees of the Board were reconstituted during 2021. All the committees are made exclusively of executive
directors and heads of operating units. The committee addresses the issues relating to the formulation of KPI's and KRI's and
assessment of its compliance together with day to day management of the performance of the management, which brings about
consistent improvement in the banking performance. The sub-committees also appraisc the Board Committes of the issues for
discussion at the higher level including policies formulation and bank limits revision.

(i) Assets and Liabilities Sub-Committee (ALCO)

The committee is composed of Managing Director, Deputy Managing Director, Head of Finance, Senior Manager Credit, Senior
Manager Treasury, Branch Head Dar es Salaam Main branch and heads of Information Technology and Operations Units. The
commitiee is responsible for managing the balance sheet to ensure proper allocation of resources to achicve performance targets.
The committee meets once in a month.

The committee also review the liquidity position on current and prospective basis, monitoring the funding alternatives to cnsure
adequacy of the liquidity is maintained. It also review the capital level for determination of its adequacy in relation to expected
growth and asset quality, reviewing the actual performance against established targets and analysing the reasons for variance for
remedials. Measurement and monitoring of investment risk to ensure quality portifolio of assets to maintain the portifolio within
the limits set by the Board and regulatory requirements is anothe responsibility of the ALCO

(ii) Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC)

Operational Risk Management Committee is a committee of senior management formed with primary objective of management
and measurement of Operational Risk at the bank. The committee met 3 times during the year. The Managing Director, and the
Senior Manager Credit participated in the meetings, as invitees.

The Committee is responsible for design and implementation of Operational Risk Management Framework, as approved by the
board which is comensurate with the bank's risk appetite, business strategy, regulatory requirements and overall governance
framework prescribed by the board.

The Committee reviews and assess the overall risk profile of the bank including key issues, risk incidents, limits, breaches, internal
and external changes having material impact on the risk profile of the bank, non-compliance with policy and procedures, pending
corrective action plans, capital computation and all its allocation, issues identified by auditors and the regulator and issue
appropriate gudance to ensure effective operational risk management framework.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
8 Corporate Governance(continued)

8.2 Management Team (continued)

(ii)) Tanzania Credit Committee

Apart from the Board Credit Committee which is vested with full powers of lending, and which meets in a quarter
and once required, there is a Tanzania Credit Committee comprised of the Managing Director as the Chairperson,
and the members of the Committee are the Deputy Managing Director. Branch Head of Dar es Salaam main
branch, Senior Manager Credit, Senior Manager Forex and any other officer(s) with the permission of the
chairnerson mav he invited

The Committee reviews and assess the proposals falling under the discretionary Lending Power of Managing
Director and the duties of the Committee remain same as presently delegated at substantive of Managing Director
whereas, proposals beyond such delegated powers are o be referred to the Board Credit Committee with
recommendations. The committee meets once in a week and the frequency of the meeting relaxed to incorporate as
more freauentlv as nossible within the week

(i) Business Continuity Program (BCP) Committee

The primary objective of BCP is to maintain viable recovery strategics and plans to ensurc that all critical
information / data are salvaged in the minimum possible time in the cvent of major incident. A major incident is any
accidental, natural or malicious event, which threatens or disrupts normal operations or services, for sufficient time
to significantly affect or cause failure of essential services rendered by the bank, including essential services

rendered to internal customers . o .
The Committee will normally meet once in a half year and as and when exigencies arise. The quorum of the

committee will be 3- members including the Chairman. The BCP Committee will deliberate and decide upon the
following:
Identification of business function groups. BIA (Business Impact Analysis), Prioritization, fixation of RTO
(Recovery Time Objectives) / RPO (Recovery Point Objectives) for the function groups.

Identification of the threats to which the Business Processcs are exposed and the assessment of the potential
damage and disruption associated with these threats if occurs.

The BCP Committee will be responsible for overall implementation, monitoring and periodical reviews of
the BCP in the Bank and appraise to Risk Management Committee (RMC) and Board once in 6 months

The BCP Committee at the Branches / other operating units comprise of the Branch Manager / Head of the
Unit, Accountant and Officer/s and award staff members as may be nominated for the purpose by the Branch
Manager / Unit Head and responsible for the following functions:To arrange meeting with Customers to

disseminate information.
Preparation, periodical testing, mock drills and review / updation of BCP of the Branch / Operating Unit.

To decide and declare the disaster and to notify the Regional Office / Reporting Authority

To initiate action as per the pre-prepared action points based on the BCP Policy, Guidelines and BCP of
the Branch / Operating Unit.

8.2.2 Relationship with Stakeholders

In fulfilling their responsibilitics, the Directors believe that they govern the Group in the best interests of
shareholders, whilst having due regard to the interests of others stakeholders in the bank including customers,
employees, regulators and suppliers. The Management communicates regularly with major shareholders and the
parent bank throughout the year by participating in stakeholders meetings. Feedbacks from these meetings is
reporied to the Board.

The Bank continues to maintain good relationship with all Stakeholders. The bank apart from suggestion box
displayed at each bank's branch, has established a website through which stakeholders are encouraged to direct
questions and ideas for quality banking services provision, to the management. The management of the bank is
dedicated to offering best banking services to its customers having put forward the infrustructure for needs
identification and product or service development therewith. Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited is keen to its
customer satisfaction and contribute to the economy growth while remaining compliant to the legal and regulatory
requirements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
8. Corporate Governance(continued)

8.2.3 Compensation of Key Management Personnel

The Key Management of the bank is comprised of the Managing Director, Deputy Managing Director and Senior

Managers reporting to the Managing Director and Deputy Managing director. The remunaration of key management
for the year ended 3 1st December 2021 was TZS 1,348 Million (TZS 1,033 Million in 2020)

8.2.4 Employees Welfare

The relationship between employees and management continued to be cordial. The bank provides training, medical
assistance and loans to its employees. Employees were deputed for training conducted by Bank of Tanzania (BOT),
National Board of Auditors and Accountants (NBAA) and Tanzania Institute of Bankers (TIOB) in the areas of Risk
Management, Accounting Standards, Regulatory Compliance, Banking operations, etc. There were no unresolved
complaints received by management from individual employees or groups thereof. The bank recruited and trained new
staff to provide unhindered services to customers.

8.2.5 Related Party Transaction

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited has a related party arrangement that provide guidance on the conduct of insider
trading. Insiders are allowed to borrow to the limit not exceeding ten (10) percent for single borrower and twenty (20)
percent against the bank's core capital at any point in time. Parties are considered related if one party has the ability to
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational
decisions. Banking relationships are entered into with related parties to include key management staff, Directors, the
asenciates and comnanies of kev manacement staff and Directors

There were no loans and advances to neither companies associated to related partics nor related parties for the
Financial year 2021. Key management staff are provided by loans covered under the human resources policy and
hence not defined as related party transaction.

8.3 Ethical Behaviour and Organization Intergrity

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited corporate governance structure involves managing and controlling relationships
amongst different stakeholders including the parent bank, Board of Directors, employees, customers, suppliers and the
community at large. The Board and all employees of the bank observe values and ethical business practices as
enshrined in the Baroda Code of Ethics which governs all its business interactions and relationships to stakeholders.

9. Risk Management and Internal Control
The Board accepts ultimate responsibility for the risk management and internal control function of the Bank of Baroda
(Tanzania) Limited. It is the responsibility of the Management to ensure that adequate internal control systems are
developed and maintained on an on-going basis in order to provide reasonable assurance regarding;
: The effectiveness and efficiency of operations,

The safeguarding of the Bank’s assets,

Compliance with applicable laws and regulations,

The reliability of accounting records,

Business sustainability under normal as well as adverse conditions, and

Responsible behaviours towards all stakeholders.

Good governance is dependent on adequate and effective Governance Framework which is in line with best
international practices. In order to ensure the internal controls remain adequate, the Bank has a full-fledged Risk and
Compliance function that coordinates and oversees the implementation of enterprise wide risk management framework
within Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited. In addition, the Board through its Risk Committees evaluated the internal
control systems during the financial vear ended 31 December 2021. It is of the opinion that they adequately and
efficiently mitigate risks inherent in Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited's operations.

10. Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks that may significantly affect the Bank’s strategies and development are mainly operational, fraud
and financial risks. The description of the operational, fraud and financial risks contend the Bank and whose related
management controls in place are as hereunder:
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
10. Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

10.1 Fraud risk

There is a general increase in fraudulent transactions in the Banking industry in Tanzania. Management has put in
place several controls to mitigate the fraud risk. These controls include:

The Bank has adequate segregation of duty control in each sensitive area of the operations which include cheque
handling, Automated Teller Machine (ATM) card and Personal Identification Number (PIN) controls and strong room,

The Bank has adequate internal reports generated by system on daily basis that helps detection of any
misappropriations and irregularities, and

The Bank has an Internal Auditor who checks and provides assurance on the banks operations which serves as a
protection against any future risk.

10.2 Operational risk

The Bank is exposed to operational risks that may arise from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems
or external events. However, Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited has adequate operational risk policies and risk
management framework that cater for mitigation of these risks

This is a risk resulting from the Bank’s activities not being conducted in accordance with formally recognised

procedures including non-compliance with Know Your Customer (KYC) and account opening procedures.
Management has put in place several controls to mitigate the operational risk including the following:

The Bank has operational manual for its daily activities, which provides adequately procedures and rules of
attending every activity of the Bank,

The Bank has several policies, which guide the operations of every department and units in a bank, and

The Bank has a system of making sure every transaction and event concluded has proper supervision and
authorization.
10.3 Financial risk
The Bank’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. More details of the financial risks facing
the Bank are provided in Note 4 to the financial statements.
Financial risk includes credit, liquidity and market risks. Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited overall risk management
policies are set out by the Board of Directors and implemented by the Management. These policies involve
identification, measurement, evaluation and mitigation or control of such risks. The additional details of the financial
risks facine the Bank are provided in the notes to the financial statements.
Management has put in place several controls to mitigate the financial risk including the following:

The Bank has adequate policies that guide each operation relating to financial risk like credit policy, financial
policy and Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) policy,

Management has internal reports that serve as red flags which puts attention to management in thoroughly
reviewing the respective operations like net open position, exchange rates and general asset revaluation, and

The Bank has in place insurance policies that cover for credit life Insurances for its borrowers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

10. Principal Risks and Uncertainties (Continued)

10.3 Financial risk (Continued)

10.3.1 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that a Bank is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its financial liabilities
when they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be the failure to meet
obligations to repay depositors and fulfill commitments to lend.

The Bank's liquidity management process. as carried out within the Bank and monitored by the Asset and Liability
Committee (ALCO) of the Bank, include:

Day-to-day funding. managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met. These include

replenishment of funds as they mature or are borrowed by customers. The Bank maintain an active presence in money
markets to enable this to happen;

Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection against any unforeseen
interruption to cash flow;

Monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory req nts; and

Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.

10.3.2 Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a fi ial i it will fl b of

changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing levels of market interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks. Interest margins may increase as a
result of such changes but may reduce losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. The Bank’s Asset and
Liability Committee (ALCO) sets limits on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that may be undertaken,
which is monitored regularly by the Bank. More details of the interest risks facing the Bank are provided in Note 4 to
the financial statements.

10.3.3 Credit risk

Credit risk is a risk of loss due to the inability or un-willingness of a client or the guarantors to meet their obligations.
Credit risk is a major risk faced by the bank. In order to manage this risk, the Board has designed a credit policy for
the bank, which is documented and forms basis for all credit approval decisions. The bank also controls this risk by
limiting exposure to one borrower or a group of borrowers, geographical area, industrial segments, ete. Regular audit
of credit process is undertaken by the intemal audit. The classification of advances based on the overdue balances,
showing exposure to credit risk and other disclosures are given in note 4 to the Financial Statements.

10.3.4 Systemic Risk

Systemic risk is the risk that an cvent at the micro level of an individual bank for example could then trigger
instability or collapse an entire industry or economy. The systemic event adversely affects a number of systemically
important intermediarics or markets and the trigger of which can be exogenous shock or endogenous shock. The
event is strong when the intermediaries concemned fail or when the markets co d becomes dysfunctional

To ensure the control over the systemic risk, Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited as financial institution works under
guidance and in compliance to verities of risk management platforms to ensure financial system soundness in the
industry and the economy at large. The Bank has controls in place to ensure maximum compliance to regulatory
requirements, international and local reporting and/or accounting standards, Basel standards, laws in force of the
banking business and many other controlling platforms.

11. Capital Structure
The Bank's capital structure for the year under review is as follows:

2021 2020]
TZS 000 TZS 000
Authorized share capital
25,000,000 shares of TZS 1,000 each 25,000,000 25,000,000
Issued and fully paid-up share capital
10,000.000 shares of TZS 1,000 each 10,000,000 10,000.000
12. Regulatory Capital
During the period, the Bank has complied with the requirements of Bank of Tanzania. The details on capital
management are provided on Note 5.
13. Shareholders of the Bank
Below are the shareholders of the Bank:
Sin__|Shareholder ‘Nationality 2021 2020}
Ordinary sh Ordinary shares
1 Bank of Baroda Tndian 9.999.999 9.999.099
2| Suresh Gajjar Tanzanian 1 1
Total 10,000,000 10,000,000 |

14, Results and Dividends
The Board is of the opinion the bank should plough back the profit to strengthen owned funds and therefore no

dividend is recommended.
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15 Performance for the Year

15.1 Tanzania Economic Review

The United Republic of Tanzania is the tenth largest and one of the fastest growing economies in Africa. The economy mainly
depends on agriculture, mining and tourism. The main goods imported are fuel/ oil, machinery, construction material and consumer
goods. The main goods exported are gold and agricultural produces. Reflecting strong income growth over the past decade, on July
1, 2020 the World Bank announced that Tanzania’s gross national income (GNI) per capita increased from USD 1,020 in 2018 to
USD 1,080 in 2019, exceeding the threshold for lower-middle income status. The country’s broad vision of its development goals
as a middle-income country in 2025 are set out in the Tanzania Development Vision 2025 characterized by high-quality
livelihoods (peace. stability, and unity), good governance, a well-educated and learning society, competitive economy capable of
sustainable growth and shared benefits. To achieve these goals, Tanzania is investing heavily in physical capital and procuring the
possibility to invest more on human development to improve the quality of life for all Tanzanians.

During the third quarter in 2021, Tanzania Gross Domestic Product (QGDP) in absolute terms at current prices increased to TZS
37.1 trillion from TZS 34.5 trillion observed in the similar quarter in 2020. Further, QGDP at 2015 constant prices also increased
to TZS 32.0 trillion in the third quarter in 2021 from TZS 30.3 trillion in the similar period in 2020, equivalent to 5.2 percent
growth rate. Countries in the East African Community that have reported economic performance in the third quarter 2021 show
that Rwanda’s economy grew by 10.1 percent compared to a negative growth of 3.6 percent in a similar period in 2020; Uganda's
economy expanded by 3.8 percent compared to a negative growth of 0.8 percent in the corresponding period in 2020; meanwhile,
Tanzania's cconomy has grown at a rate of 5.2 percent in the third quarter in 2021 compared to 4.4 percent in the third in 2020,

Growth of money supply was high and consistent with the target for 2021/22, owing to liquidity easing monetary policy. Extended
broad money supply (M3) grew at 15.5 percent in the year ending December 2021, up from 14.9 percent and 5.7 percent in
November 2021 and December 2020, respectively. Similarly, broad money supply (M2) registered an annual growth of 17.6
percent, up from 17.2 percent and 8.2 percent.

The external sector continued to improve from the effects of COVID-19 pandemic, with tourism sector continuing to signal
recovery. During the vear ending December 2021, the overall balance of payvments was a surplus of USD 1,857.3 million from a
deficit of USD 764.9 million in the corresponding period in 2020, owing to increase in foreign financial inflows. During the same
period the current account recorded a deficit of USD 2,032.3 million from a deficit of USD 1,122.0 million, driven by increased
higher imports of goods

15.2 Banking Sub-sector Review

The banking sector generally remained sound and stable with levels of capital and liquidity above regulatory requirements. The
accommodative monetary policy continued to ensure adequate supply of liquidity in the domestic money markets in December
2020. This was reflected by sustained low and stable money market interest rates and yields on government securities. Likewise,
the stability of the shilling against major currencies continued to signal less pressure on demand for foreign exchange liquidity
partly contributed by gradual increase in supply of foreign exchange, mainly from non-traditional exports in particular minerals
and manufactured goods.

For the quarter ended September 2020, liquidity in the banking system remained adequate, in line with accommodative monetary
policy stance. This was reflected by strong demand for government securities, particularly in the longer-end of the maturity
spectrum and soflening of the money market interest rates. For the quarter ended September 2020, liquidity in the banking system
remained adequate, in line with accommodative monctary policy stance. This was reflected by strong demand for government
securities, particularly in the longer-end of the maturity spectrum and softening of the money market interest rates.

11



Annual Report & Financial Statements 2021 Report of the Directors

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
15 Performance for the Year (continued)

15.2 Banking Sub-sector Review (continued)

The shilling remained stable against major global trading currencies. The shilling strengthened due to increase of export proceeds
from gold, manufactured goods and tourism. In addition, low inflation supported the stability of Tanzanian shillings. In December
2021, the Tanzanian shilling was traded at TZS 2,307.39 per US dollar, compared with TZS 2,304.64 per US dollar in November
2021. On annual basis, the Tanzanian shillings appreciated by 0.11 percent from TZS 2,309.83 per US dollar registered in
December 2020

Credit extended to the private sector and central government by the banking system grew by 14.9 percent in the year ending
December 2021, compared with 10.8 percent a year earlicr. Credit extended to the private sector rebounded to pre-pandemic
levels, recording an anmual growth of 10 percent in December 2021 compared with 7.8 percent in the preceding month and 3.1
percent in December 2020.

The recovery of private sector credit was largely attributed to sustained accommodative monetary policy and improving business
conditions from adverse impact of COVID-19 pandemic. Much of the credit to the private sector was directed to trade, personal
activities-mainly small and medium undertakings, manufacturing and mining activities. Personal related activities, trade,
manufacturing and agriculture remained the major beneficiaries in terms of share of credit extended by banks to the private sector.
Domestic credit extended to the private sector and central government by the banking system grew by 14.9 percent for the year
ended December 2021, compared with 10.8 percent a year earlier.

Interest rates charged on loans by banks slightly decreased in December 2021, partly reflecting adequacy of liquidity in the
bmkingsystunmdimpactofﬂxmeasmadoptedmlunwlendingratesandincrease;rivatesectm'creditgmwﬂx. In particular,
the overall lending rates averaged 16.37 percent from 16.40 percent and 16.74 percent recorded in the preceding month and in
December 2020, respectively. Negotiated lending rates charged to prime customers remained broadly unchanged at around 14
percent. Similarly, interest rates offered on deposits by banks declined marginally. The overall deposit interest rate averaged 6.79
percent in December 2021 compared with 6.80 percent and 7.09 percent in November 2021 and December 2020, respectively.
Negotiated deposits rate for prime customers remained almost unchanged around 9.82 percent in December 2021.
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15 Performance for the Year(Continued)

15.3 Performance Highlights of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Ltd
i

15.3.1 Key Business Fisures TZS in Mn
3112.16) 3112171 31.12.18] 31.12.19] 31.12.20]1 31.12.21
1245520 129613] 1334300 155.535] 164.022] 178505
ST BT M ) e B BRI
1.52
56,130 86.008 98.573] 114.559] 134472 148.300
Of which; Net 54.867 86.008 98,573]  113.652] 132.747 14?:272|
Business Mix 180.682] 215621] 232 003]  270.094] 299.394]  326.805
Total Asset 159.995] _168.369]  173578] 106.053] 211672 277.001
Interest Income 12,643 14,176 13582] 14811  15.166 15,565
Interest Expense 4,704 4,845 4,676 4,843 5,317 6,075
Net Interest Income 7,939] 9331 8,906 9,968 9,849 9.489]
Non-Interest Income 2.229] 1,959 1,931 1,906 1,490] 1,848
Total Income 10,220] 11.290| 10,837 11.875] 11,293 11,337
Operating Expenses 5,397 5,647 5,062 5,638 5,182, 6,163
Operating Profit 4.823 sedd]  5775] 6236|6111 5.174
[Net Profit/(Loss) 2.672 2.836 2.147 1.103] _ 3.627 2.084
Gross NPA 4,452 9376 6,567 2,495 2,943 4,528
[Net NPA 3.199 6.469 4.169] 1.401 827| 3.356
< DEPOSIT

Bank provides all Banking services which includes accepting deposits in local currency and foreign currency mainly in USD. The

type of deposits are Saving Bank, Current Account, Call Deposits, Recurring

has increased to TZS 178.51 Billion from TZS

Billion from 140.67 Billion as at 31" December 2020 of which TZS 50.21 Billion
was low cost deposits. Average cost of deposit stood at 3.71%
(2020: 64.14%) was in foreign currency and 36.32% (2020:35.8

% ADVANCES

Deposits and Fixed Deposits. Aggregate Deposit
164.92 Billion. Customer Deposit as at 31 December 2021 stood at TZS 157 11
(28.13%), (2020: TZS 51.55 Billion (31.26%))
p-a. up from 3.66% in FY 2020. Out of total deposits, 63.68%
6%) in Tanzanian Shilling,

Bank is active in financing various types of economic activities which mainly include trading, manufacturing, construction, hotel,

real estate, services like transport, export of agricultural commodities
Gross Advance stood at TZS 148.30 Billion against TZS 13447
(2020: 17.38%). Out of total advances 65.56% (2020: 63.97
Tanzanian Shilling. Yield on advances stood at 9.27% pa.
96.95 percent (2020: 97.81 percent) of gross advances. Thy
new slippage to NPA accounts. The ratio was below the maximum requi

focus on NPA recovery so that the Gross NPA level be maintained below 5%.

“ REMITTANCES

, import of goods and personal loans. As on 31 12.2021, the
Billion as on 31.12.2020. The Y-0-Y growth was 10.28%
%) was in US Dollars currency and 34.44% (2020 36.30%) in
down from 10.14% p.a. in FY 2020. The performing assets stood at
c Gross NPA increased to 3.05% in 2021 from 2.19% in 2020 due to
rement of 5 percent. The Bank has continued its steps to

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited branches provide active remittance services inside the country and overseas. For prompt
remittance service, Bank is using various channels of remittance services.
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15 Performance for the Year(Continued)
15.3 Performance Highlights of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Ltd(continued)

115.3.2 Key Ratios

; 2016 2017 2018' 2019' 2020 2021
Particulars
% % % %! % %
0sit -21.21 4.06 2.94 16.57 6.04 8.24
Credit_ﬁ_rowth 3.15 53.23 14.61 16.22 17.38 10.28
Growth in Income 478 10.48 -4.02 9.58 -4.9 0.39
Growth in Operating Expenditure 22.94 4.63 -10.36 11.38 -8.09) 18.93
Growth in Profit before Tax -0.21 27991 -17.05 -50.36 198.27 -30.28
Net Proﬁt_ﬂ’th -19.08 6.14) -24.29 -48.64 228.83 -40.75
Return on Equity 9.78| 7.64 6.5 2.81 8.38 4.76
Return on Asset 2.05 1.69 0.82 0.59) 1.7 0.77
Cost to Income 52.81 50.01 46.71 47.49' 45.93 54.48
Gross NPA% 7.93 10.55 10.84 2.18| 2.1 3.05
Net NPA% 5.81 7.52 8.4 1.22 0.77 2.26
15.3.3 Variance Analysis

We are pleased to analyse the significant variances in the trend for the period under review compared to the performance of the
Bank for the financial year ended 31* December, 2021.

The decline in net profit before and after taxation was on account of write off of accounts as per regulatory requirements which
were not fully provided as per the reporting requirements during the year. We have written off an amount of TZS 0.89 Billion
which remained in NPL category for more than four consecutive quarters and which were not fully provided as per IFRS.

Growth in Operating expenses in response to revision of salaries for staff of the Bank which is linked to increased cost of living
emanating from among other factors. Consumer Price Index (CPT) mainly measured by the core and non-food price indices.

Decline in operating income as compared to the corresponding period in 2020 in response to decline in net interest income as a
result of growth in interest expense that ought to weigh the increase in interest income. The average cost of deposit for the bank
for the period under review has increased as compared to the year 2020.

15.3.4 Bank’s performance vis-a —vis Industry

During the last eighteen years of operations, the Bank could establish its business at sizable level. In the financial year 2021,
despite challenging industry scenario and the COVID 19 pandemic, the Bank has shown improved performance in all the
parameters. Operating efficiency wise. the Bank continued to be one of the best banks operating in Tanzania. In adverse
environment most of the banks in Tanzania are either experiencing sharp decline in profit or incurring net loss. Due to adverse
market scenario. the Gross NPA of the Bank was 3.05% but lower than the industry minimum requirement of 5%. The Bank has
continued with its focus on NPA recovery and has taken measures to maintain the NPA below the maximum requirement of 5%
in FY 2021.
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16. Cashflow

The Bank's investment in government securities grown by TZS 1.21 billion (2020: TZS 0.89 billion decline) and lending to
customers rose by TZS 14.52 billion (2020: TZS 1.2 billion). On the other hand, deposits from customers rose by TZS 16.45
billion (2020: TZS 19.10 billion). Such investment activitics and customer deposits are the major factors explaining the Bank's
movement in cash flow generated from operations. From total investments in sccuritics, 12% is expected to mature in 2021,
The Bank continues to maintain sound liquidity position to enable it meet its cash flow commitments and requirements.

17.  Liquidity and Funding Policy

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited strongly emphasise on liquidity risk management and daily cash flow management which is
handled by the Treasury Department to ensure the Bank holds sufficient liquid assets to enable it continue with normal
operations. Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) also manages the Bank's exposure to liquidity risk by ensuring that limits are in
ling with realistic assumptions and tracks compliance on a monthly basis. Stress test to ascertain the Bank's resilience to market
shocks is done by Risk and Compliance Department.

The Bank's main sources of funding are customers' deposits and shareholders' funds and occasionally interbank borrowings as
part of its normal market operations. All these initiatives aimed at reducing dependency on interbank borrowing and provide
financing of midterm to long term projects.

18. Treasury Policy

The Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited operates a centralized treasury department for managing treasury activities in
accordance with the framework of treasury policies and guidelines approved by the Board. The treasury department transacts
with a number of counterparty banks and financial institutions, and adopts a systematic approach to the control and monitoring
of counterparty credit risk. Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited, through its Risk and compliance department, monitors
compliance against the principal policies and guidelines. The key treasury policies are:

18.1 Market Risk
The policy provides guidance/ framework for managing exchange rate and interest risks, also protect the value of the bank
assets from adverse effects of market rate movements.

18.2 Liquidity Risk

Provide guidance for management of the liquidity risk under normal and crisis situation. This set out a liquidity management
decision making structure in the bank, approach to funding and planning for liquidity planning and management, regulatory
compliance and contingency funding. Strong cash generation in recent years and a prudent financing strategy have resulted in
adequately position to withstand the credit crisis in the bank and capital markets.
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18.3 Contingent Funding Plan

Manages stressed liquidity situation created by a problem or market wider crisis and ensure that the bank is able all the time
to meet its matured obligations as they fall due and remain as good as going concern.

18.4 Limit

Provide guidance/framework for managing market and liquidity risks for the counterparties at domestic and international
level. It also provides guidance for investment and credit exposures limit.

18.5 Current Liquidity and level of Borrowing

The Bank ensurcs that liquidity is monitored and adequately manages its liquidity gap by determining the excess or shortage
of funds at selected maturity dates by tracing cash inflows and outflows over a series of specified time buckets. The aim is to
trace and reflect the maturity periods for the Bank™s assets and liabilities.

18.6 Maturing profile and Un-drawn commitment Borrowing

The Bank is sound and will remain to be sound in liquidity position as it has adopted a more conservative approach to the
investment of its surplus cash, with money market deposits being placed with relatively stronger financial institutions for
shorter periods. Bank counterparty credit risk has been, and continues to be. monitored closely on a sysiematic and ongoing
basis, taking account of the size of the institution.

19. Future Development Plans

In 2022, the Bank will continue implementing the 5-year strategy focusing systems and products while also improving quality
of service. The Bank will also continue with aggressive recovery of bad loans and enhancement of credit risk management.

20. Accounting Policies and Critical Judgement and Estimates

Results of the Bank are sensitive to the accounting policies, assumptions and estimates that underline the preparation of the
financial statements. When preparing the financial statements, it is the Directors’ responsibility under the Tanzania
Companies Act 2002 to select suitable accounting policies and to make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent. The accounting policies that are deemed critical to our results and financial position, in terms of the materiality of
the items to which the policies are applied and the high degree of judgment involved, including the use of assumptions and
estimation, are described in Notes 2 to the financial statements.

21. Solvency

The state of affairs of the Bank as at 31 December 2021 is set out on page 28 of the financial statements. The Directors
consider the Bank to be solvent within the meaning ascribed by the Tanzania Companies Act, 2002. In the opinion of the
Directors, there are no prejudicial matters that can affect the Bank.

22. The Key Resources and Strength

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited continues to give its top priority to kev resources which are people and technology which
gives us strength in service delivery, productivity and financial strength. Customer satisfaction depends first and foremost on
people and hence employees continue to be the most important asset as demonstrated by this vear's result which is a tribute to
their commitment and hard work. Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited has skilled and experienced employees who are
considered as key resources in pursuing its business objectives. Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited continues to encourage
open and honest communication in decision making. ICT is also an important enabler in service delivery. This is the reason
why Bank of Baroda (Tanzama) Limited has continuously investing in the state of art technology to realise operational
excellence and better service delivery to our customers.

Productivity has been the key focus for Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited and thus the initiatives we embarked on during
the year have made us achieve significant progress in embedding productivity culture throughout Bank of Baroda (Tanzania)
Limited. Our aspiration is to continuously make the Bank more customers focused and efficient in the long term, while
managing short term expenses within appropriate level. Given the strength of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited we have
ample capacity to support our customers.
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23.  Fiduciary Responsibility
Members of the Board of Directors as stewards of public trust always acted for the good of the bank rather than for the
benefit of themselves throughout the period. Reasonable care was exercised in all decisions taken by the bank without

placing the Bank under unnecessary risks.

24.  Environmental Control
The Bank is committed to the prevention of environmental pollution and is in compliance with relevant environmental laws
in the area it operates as a minimum standard and seck to implement best practices wherever possible.

25, Gender Parity
The Bank gives gender equal opportunities to all Tanzanians during recruitment and filling of positions provided they have
the required qualifications and ability. Out of the total number of employees in the Bank as at 31 December:

Gender 2021 2020
Male 28 28
Female 21 22

49 50

26. Employees Welfare
26.1 Training Program

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited spent TZS 37.58 billion in the period under review from TZS 17.80 billion incurred in
2020 on staff training in order to improve employees™ technical skills and performance. A total number of 23 (2020: 22)
staff were financed by the Bank to attend various trainings during the year. In year 2021, Bank of Baroda (Tanzania)
Limited continued to provide e-learning training courses covering soft skills and specialised courses for ICT, risk
management, relationship management and credit management which enabled employees to acquire relevant skills for better
understanding of their work. The Bank is encouraging staff to pursue Distance Learning Programme on banking certificate
and diploma courses that can be easily accessed countrywide. In house training programmes and structured programmes
offered locally and internationally were also part of the training programmes for 2021 to enable experience sharing and
exposure.

26.2 Medical Assistance

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited continues to provide medical services to its employees, their spouses and up to four
children. The services is structured in such a way that, all local employees are covered by health insurance while expartriate
employees are served on reimbursement basis. The spirit of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited is to assist employees work
life balance and ensure better productivitv.

26.3 Health and Safety

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited takes all reasonable and practicable steps to safeguard health, safety and welfare of its
employees. A safe working environment is maintained for all employees by providing adequate and proper personal
protective equipment, training and supervision as necessary. Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited observes Occupational
Safetv and Health Administration (OSHA) reauirements and ensures full comoliance.
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26. Employees Welfare (continued)

26.4 Financial Assistance to Staff
Incentive Loans and advances are available to all confirmed employees depending on the assessment and discretion of
management as to the need and circumstances in line with the Human Management Resources and Credit Policics.

26.5 Staffing

As at 31 December, 2021 Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited's number of employees were 49 employees from 50 in 2020.
Out of the total number of staff in Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited as at 31 December 2021: 28 were male and 21
females. Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited gives equal access to employment opportunities and ensures that the best
available person is appointed to any given position free from discrimination of any kind and without regard to factors such as
gender, marital status, tribe. religion, and disability which does not impair ability to discharge duties.

26.7 Disabled persons
It remains the Bank’s policy to accept disabled persons for employment for those vacancies that such persons are able to fill.
The bankhasnotrecruitedanydisabledperxonsdmingﬂ:eyear.

27.  Gratitude

The Board of directors express its sincere gratitude to the Government of the United Republic of Tanzania, Bank of
Tanzania, Bank of Baroda (India) and Tanzania Investment Centre, valued clients, staff, all the stakeholders and well wishers
for their co-operation and support.

28.  Events After Reporting Period

There are no material evmts_.acljusl:ingmnmadjusﬁng,whichhavemcun&ibetweenthereporﬁngdateandthedatewhen
financial statements are authorized for issue.

29.  Auditor

M/s NEXIA SJ TANZANIA, of P.O. Box 12729, Dar es Salaam were appointed as the independent auditors of Bank of
Baroda (Tanzania) Limited for the year ended 31 December 2021. The auditors have expressed their willingness to continue
in office. A resolution proposing the reappointment or appointment of auditors of the Bank for the year ending 31 December
2022 will be placed in the Annual General Meting,

By Order of the Board

/DU’

------------------------------

Mr. Aditya Narayan Singh
Managing Director

Date:2 & [ 03[ 2022

Mr, Vikash Kumar Pandey
Deputy Managing Director

18



16

Annual Report & Financial Statements 2021 Statement of Directors'

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania)Limited
Statement of directors' responsibilities
For the year ended 31st December 2021

The directors are required in terms of the Companies Act of 2002 to maintain adequate accounting records and are
responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial information included in this
report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the bank as at the
end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards, the requirements of the Companies Act of 2002 and Banking and Financial
Institution Act, 2006. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial statements
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, the requirements of
the Companies Act of 2002, Banking and Financial Institution Act, 2006 and the guidelines of Bank of Tanzania, and are
based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and
estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by
the bank and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet
these responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost
effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework,
effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls
are monitored throughout the bank and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the
bank’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk
management in the bank is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the bank.
While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the bank endeavours to minimize it by ensuring that appropriate
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and
constraints.

The directors acknowledge that they are responsible for establishing appropriate policies and procedures to prevent non-
compliance with laws and regulations (NOCLAR), including whistle blowing procedures as a necessary part of good
internal governance.

The directors are ot the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management that the system ot
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the
financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The directors have reviewed the bank’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 December 2022 and, in the light of this
review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the bank has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the bank's financial statements. The
financial statements have been examined by the bank's external auditors and their report is presented on pages 21 to 26

The financial statements set out on pages 27 to 50, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were authorised
and approved by the board of directors on 2.8 .- .©.3.:. 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Aditya Narayan Singh
Director

Mr. Vikash Kumar Pandey
Director
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Bank of Baroda (Tanzania)Limited
Declaration of the Head of Finance
For the year ended 31 December 2021

The National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA) according to the power conferred under the Auditors and
Accountants (Registration) Act. No. 33 of 1972, as amended by Act No. 2 of 1995, requires financial statements to
be accompanied with a declaration issued by the Head of Finance/Accounting responsible for the preparation of
financial statements of the entity concerned.

As stated above, it is the duty of the Finance Manager as the Professional Accountant to assist the directors to
discharge the responsibility of preparing financial statements of the company that show a true and fair view of the
company's position and performance in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. Full legal
responsibility for the preparation of financial statements rests with the directors as disclosed in the Statement of
director's resnonsihilitv on nage 19.

I CPA Deogratias Edward Ndushi being Head of Finance/Accounting of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited
hereby acknowledge my responsibility of ensuring that financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
have been prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards, Banking and Financial
Institutions Act,2006 and the Tanzanian Companies Act, 2002.

I thus confirm that the financial statements give a true and fair view position of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Ltd as at
31 December 2021 and that they have been prepared based on properly maintained financial records.

vﬁmi

Signed by: ...

NBAA Membership No.: ACPA 2964

Date: '130'1«'2‘01-'1_-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF BANK OF BARODA (TANZANIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Bank as at 31 December 2021, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2002 and the Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006 of Tanzania.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountant's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with
the National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA) Code of Ethics and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our

audit of the financial statements, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF BANK OF BARODA (TANZANIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

No.

Key audit matter

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

1.

Impairment loss on loans and advances to customers

Impairment is a subjective area due to the level
of judgement applied by management in
determining provisions. The Bank is required to
calculate impairment of loans and advances in
accordance with both the regulations of the Bank
of Tanzania and IFRSs.

We focused on the identification of impairment
events, which differs based upon the type of
lending product and customer. Judgement is
required to determine whether a loss has been
incurred. We also focused on the measurement
of impairment losses, including the assessment
of whether historical experience is appropriate
when assessing the likelihood of incurred losses
in respect to loans. As disclosed in under the
significant accounting policies, judgement is
applied in determining the appropriate
parameters and assumptions used to calculate
impairment. For example, the assumption of
customer that will default, the valuation of
collateral for secured lending and the expected
future cash fiows of loans.

The disclosure associated with credit risk is set
out in the financial statements, under Significant
accounting policies point number (G)

e QOur audit procedures included the
assessment of key controls over the approval,
recording and monitoring of loans and
advances, and evaluating the methodologies,
inputs and assumptions used by the Bank in
calculating collectively assessed impairment
losses, and assessing the adequacy of
impairment  allowances for individually
assessed loans and advances. We compared
the Bank's assumptions for impairment
allowances to externally available industry,
financial and economic data and our own
assessment in relation to key inputs. As part
of this, we assessed the Bank's estimates and
assumptions used including the consistency
of judgement applied in determination of the
amount and timing of expected future cash
flows, and consideration of economic factors
and historical default rates.

¢ We evaluated whether the Bank’s assumption
on the expected future cash flows, including
the value of realisable collateral was based on
up-to-date valuations and available market
information.

 We also assessed whether the financial
statements disclosures appropriately reflect
the Bank’s exposure to credit risk.

« We challenged management assumptions
regarding the recovery rate of unsecured
facilities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF BANK OF BARODA (TANZANIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

No.

Key audit matter

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

2.

Information control systems and controls over financial reporting in the financial statements.

The banks financial and accounting and reporting
systems are heavily dependent on complex
systems. Significant reliance on IT systems
presents a significant risk to the bank as the core
banking system is considered complex due to
multiple  significant  functionalites  and
interdependencies with other systems. We spent
significant audit effort in the audit of these
systems as part of the audit process, as it is
critical for the control environment of the bank
and therefore, we determined it to be a key audit
matter.

Our audit procedures in this area included, among
others the use of our IT auditors / specialists in:

* Reviewing of IT Governance practices to assess
their adequacy, the existence of IT Risk
assessment, and the role of IT Steering
Committee (if any) and the Board of Directors;

e Reviewing information systems within the
financial institutions including core banking
system, operating systems, applications,
databases, servers and networking devices and
confirm whether all the systems are robust
enough to ensure data integrity, confidentiality
and availability;

s Performing application controls testing which
include configuration controls, sensitive access
and segregation of duties controls, interface
controls, data integrity controls and obtain
reasonable assurance on the accuracy and
completeness of reports;

e Reviewing and accessing whether balances
resulting from all transactions and data
processed within the institution’s IT system are
accurately captured and reported in the General
Ledger, the Financial Statements and Returns
submitted to the BOT; and

o Reviewing IT security controls including
application security, privileged access, audit
trails, system monitoring and maintenance,
vulnerability assessments and penetration
testing, controls over program and system
changes, integrity and systems ability to recover
from unexpected shutdown's and ability to
recover from a disaster resulting in loss of data.
The business continuity practice in its totality
was reviewed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF BANK OF BARODA (TANZANIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Other Information

Other information consists of the information included in the corporate information, report of the directors,
statement of directors’ responsibilities and declaration of the head of finance, other than the financial
statements and our auditor's opinion thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance thereon.

Management is responsible for the other information. In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2002 and the Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006 of Tanzania, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

A further description of the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is given in the
Appendix to Independent Auditor's report. This description forms part of our auditor's report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF BANK OF BARODA (TANZANIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for, and only for, the Bank's members as a body in

accordance with the Companies Act, 2002 and for no other purpose.

As required by the Companies Act, 2002 we report to you, based on our audit that:

(i) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(i) in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Bank, so far as appears from our
examination of those books; and

(iiiy the Bank's statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income are in agreement
with the books of account.

As required by the Banking and Financial Institutions (External Auditors) Regulations, 2014 of Tanzania, we
report to you, based on our audit, that:
« In our opinion, the capital adequacy ratios as presented in Page 41 of the financial statements have

been computed in accordance with the Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006, and the Banking
and Financial Institutions (Capital Adequacy) Regulations, 2014 of Tanzania.

N asia S

Nexia SJ Tanzania

Certified Public Accountants

1st Floor, Oyster Plaza, Haile Selassie Road
P.0. Box 12729,Dar es Salaam,Tanzania.

Sujata Jaffer

Engagement Partner

NBAA registration no. ACPA 718
Dar es Salaam

Ref: NSJ/13/2022

pate: 2803 | 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF BANK OF BARODA (TANZANIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Appendix to Independent Auditors Report

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank'’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2021

Notes 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
TZS '000 TZS '000
Interest income 6 15,564,522 15,165,798
Interest expense 7 (6,075.437) (5.317.061)
Net interest income 9,489,085 9,848,737
Fees and commission income 8 1,256,248 1,002,036
Foreign exchange gain 8(a) 498,597 429,805
Other operating income 8(b) 93.559 59.098
Operating income 11,337,489 11,339,677
Operating expenses 9 (6,093,661) (5.228.427)
Impairment losses on loans and advances 10 (666.489) (895,730)
Bad debts written off 10 (894,744) (33,695)
Profit before tax 3,682,595 5,181,825
Tax expense 11 (1.598.138) (1.554.834)
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the bank 2,084,457 3,626,990
Earnings per share (TZS per share) 31 208 363

The accounting policies and notes on page 31 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

T

~ a Narayan Singh
Managing Director Deputy Managing Director
Dm:-RR’O}Iiﬂ-?-— Date:- 2 €03 [2022

Place :- Dar es Salaam

Place :- Dar es Salaam

Report of the Independent auditor is on page 21 to 26
The financial statements onpage27m50amapprovedbytheBoardofdimctorsaudsignedonitsbeha.lfby....,
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2021

31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
Notes TZS '000 TZS '000
ASSETS
Cash and balances with Bank of Tanzania 12 15,119.203 17,729,334
Deposits and balances due from banking institutions 13 36,303,572 34,982,793
Government securities 14 21,486,291 20,279.872
Net loans and advances to customers 16 147,272,057 132,746,975
Property and equipment 21 1,945,011 2,263,522
Current income tax recoverable 17 4,155,104 1,911,340
Deferred income tax 24 203,519 481,134
Right of use asset 19 1,637,081 614,819
Other assets 18 1,004,808 662,723
Total assets 229,126,646 211,672,511
LIABILITIES
Customer deposits 22 157,114,021 140,666,357
Deposits and balances due to banking institutions 22 21,391,229 24,256,148
Other liabilities 23 1,116,134 1,922,970
Lease liability 20 1,538,888 595,953
Current tax 25 2,882,108 1,075,906
Total liabilities 184,042,380 168,517,334
EQUITY
Share capital 30 10,000,000 10,000,000
Retained earnings 33,960,281 32,234,308
Revaluation reserves 248,733 248,733
Statutory reserve 875,252 672,136
Total equity 45,084,266 43,155,177
Total liabilities and equity 229,126,646 211,672,511

The accounting policies and notes on page 31 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 31 to 50 are approved by the Board of directors on
i e e cen oo 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Aditya Narayan Singh Mr. Vikash Kumar Pandey

Managing Director Deputy Managing Director

Report of the Independent auditor is on page 21 to 26
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER 2021

At 1st January 2020

Changes in equity

Profit for the year

Prior period adjustments

Diflerence between BOT Provision and IFRS 9 Provision

At 31st December 2020
At 1st January 2021

Changes in equity

Profit for the vear

Prior period adjustments

Difference between BOT Provision and IFRS 9 Provision
Adjustment

At 31st December 2021

senminn Teasanane sessssnasnnns

“Aditya Narayan Singh
Managing Director

Revaluation Statutory Retained
Share capital Reserve reserve earnings Total
TZS '000 TZS 000 TZS '000 TZS 000

10000000 248733 774044 _ 8380574 _ 39404251

2 g : 3,626,990 3,626,990
" . . 123.936 123,936
< i (102.808) 102.808 -

10000000 248.733 672136 __ 32234308 __ 43.155177

10,000,000 248,733 672,136 32,234 308 43,155,177

- 2,084,457 2,084 457
- - - (155,368) (155,368)
- - 203,116 (203.116) =

—10000000 248733 ____ 805292 . 336028 __ 45,084,260

The accounting policies and notes on page 31 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2021

Notes
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Depreciation
Gain on disposal/revaluation
Prior period adjustments
Provision for impairment
Net cash flow before changes in working capital
Change in working capital
Increase in Statutory Minimum Reserve (SMR)
(Increase)/ decreasein government securities maturing after 3 months
Increase / (Decrease) in deposits due from other banks
(Increase) in loans and advances to customers
Increase in other assets
Increase in customers deposits
Increase in deposits due to banking institutions
Decrease in other liabilities
Cash generated from operating activities
Tax paid

Net cash flow generated from operations

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY

Purchase of property and equipment
Net cash flow used in investing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 15

31-Dec-21  31-Dec-20
TZS'000  TZS '000
3,682,595 5,181,824
379,408 232,231

: (3.800)

(155.,368) 123,936
666,489 895,730
(759.223) 274,823
(1,206,419) 891,787
- (1,842,705)
(15,191,571) (19,990.285)
(3.330497)  (291,354)
16,447,664  (9.051,485)
(2,864,919) 18,408,722
1942301 1,440,527
(389,540)  (3,730,049)
(1,598,138)  (1,554,834)
(1,987,678)  (5,284,883)
(60.894)  (1.147,000)
(60,893) _(1,147,000)
(2.048,571)  (6.431,883)
39,466,499 45,898,382
37417928 39,466,499

Theaccountingpolicicsaudmtesonpage31t050founanimagmlpartofﬂmeeﬁnancialmts.

Mr. Aditya Narayan Singh

Managing Director
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1 REPORTING ENTITY

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bank of Baroda Ltd., India. It has been incorporated
under the Tanzanian Companies Act, 2002 on 4 December 2003. The Bank of Tanzania issued a license to conduct Banking
Business under Section 5 of the Banking & Financial Institutions Act, 1991 (As amended) on 7 October 2004. The Bank
commenced business on 13 October 2004. The principal activity of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited is to provide banking
and related services stipulated by the Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006.

The address of the registered office is as follows:
Plot No. 149/32
Ohio / Sokoine Drive
P. 0. Box 5356
Dar es Salaam, Tanzania.

The Bank's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been approved for the issue by the Board of
Directors on 28th March, 2022. neither the entity's owners nor others have the power to amend the financial statements after
1ssue.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Statement of compliance
The financial statements are prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The financial
statements are presented in Tanzania Shillings (TZS) which is also the functional currency, rounded to the nearest thousand.

The financial statements comprise statement of comprehensive income, statement of financial position, statement of changes
in equity, statement of cash flows, and notes to financial statements. Income and expenses, excluding the components of other
comprehensive income, are recognised in the statement of comprehensive ncome. Transactions with the owners of the
company in their capacity as owners are recognised in the statement of changes in equity.

2.2 Basis of preparation
The Bank’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
Additional information required by the Tanzania Companies Act 2002 and the Banking and Financial Institution Act, 2006
were included where appropriate. The financial statements comprise statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of financial position, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and the notes to financial
statements.

The measurement basis applied in the preparation of these financial statements is the historical cost basis, except where
otherwise stated in the accounting policies below. The financial statements are presented in Tanzania shillings (TZS) and the
amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand shillings except where otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires the directors to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies. Changes in
assumptions may have a significant impact on the financial statements in the period the assumptions changed. The directors
believe that the underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the Bank’s financial statements therefore present the
financial position and results fairly

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in Note 3.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Changes in accounting policy and procedures
i) Standards adopted

Title Key requirements

As a result of the corona virus (COVID-19) pandemic, rent concessions have
been granted to lessees. Such concessions might take a variety of forms,
including payment holidays and deferral of lease payments. On 28 May 2020,
the TASB published an amendment to IFRS 16 that provides an optional
practical expedient for lessees from assessing whether a rent concession related
to COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees can elect to account for such
rent concessions in the same way as they would if they were not lease
modifications. In many cases. this will result in accounting for the concession
as variable lease payments in the period(s) in which the event or condition that
triggers the reduced payment occurs.

The amendment had no impact on the financial statements of the Bank.
These amendments defer the date of application of IFRS 17 by 2 vears to 1
January 2023 and change the fixed date of the temporary exemption in IFRS 4
Amendments to IFRS 17 and IFRS 4. from applying IFRS 9. Financial instrument until 1 January 2023.
“Insurance contracts’, deferral of [FRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ —
Covid-19 related rent concessions

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Bank.

Amendments to TFRS 9, TAS 39, IFRS 7. The Phase 2 amendments address issues that arise from the implementation of
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Interest Rate the reforms, including the replacement of one benchmark with an alternative
Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 one.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statcments of the Bank.

ii) New standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted

Ceruu'nnewmunﬁngstandmdsandinwmlaﬁonshavebmpubﬁsmdﬂmmnotmandataryforBi"Deeemberzuzl
:cpol‘ﬁl]gpel'iodsandhnwmtbwnmlyadopmdbyﬂmek,ThmsundudsmnMcxpﬂmdwhawnmleﬁﬂ
impantontthankinthccmmtmemmporﬁngpcﬁodsmdmfomblcfuﬂmmwﬁm

Title Key requirements Effective date
IAS 16 "Property, Plant and kqupment”
outlines the accounting treatment for most
of 5 i
types property. pl.mtamdcql.upmcnt.Eff o B el piiode

Amendments to IAS 16 — Pmpmy.m ; 3’1 f:a].;; x eqil.ui ﬂylsm::s?g beginning on or after January

Plant and Equipment cither using a cost or revaluation model, and 1. 2?22. Early application is

depreciated so that its depreciable amount is >

allocated on a systematic basis over its useful

life.

IAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets” outlines the accounting for

. provisions (liabilities of uncertain timing or Effective for annual periods

mm&um.s“?';d (l;::lwmnst amou_nt). together with ctmlmg:nt assets beginning on or after January
Abocks € (possible assets) and contingent liabilities 1, 2022. Early application is

(possible obligations and present obligations permitted.

that are not probable or not reliably

g i

"Accounting Policies, Changes in y "

Aineodkaili 6 143§ — Aciisting Ascouslisg Esteoatos snd Emowt” is sppliedin T SX a““m“:: j'”“"d“
Policics, Changes in Accounting sclecting and applying accounting policies, l:egzlggl}n BE::;; appl a{:uaprm
Estimates and Errors accounting for changes in estimates and ° ™ .°°

reflecting corrections of pri wriodmrs."l‘hcm'm‘

R pnor

IFRS 1 "First-time Adoption of International BimEE o i pekols
Amendments to IFRS 1 — Firsttime Financial Reporting Standards’ sets out the | -~ .~ m]':‘n“m
Adoption of International Financial procedures that an entity must follow when h"*‘“"”l mz‘gwa o &
Reporting Standards adopts TFRS for the first time as the basis for 1+ 2022 Early application 18
preparing its general purpose financial permittcd.
IERS 17 establishes the principles for the Annual periods beginning on
recognition, measurement, presentation and or after January 1. 2022,
IFRS 3 "Business Combinations” outlines the Effective for annual periods
Amendments to IFRS 3 — Business accounting when an acquirer obtains control of beginning on or after January
Combinations a business (¢.g. an acquisition or merger). Such 1, 2022. Early application is

business combinations are accounted for using  permitted.

IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are recognized within “interest and similar income’
and ‘interest and similar expense’ in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income using the effective interest rate
method.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of financial assets, except for;
(a) Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets for which the original credit-adjusted effective interest rate is
applied to the amortized cost of the financial assct.

(b) Financial asscts that are not purchased or originated credit impaired but have subsequently become credit-impatred (or
‘stage 3"), for which interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to their amortized cost (i.e.net of the
expected credit loss provision).

Interest accruing from non-performing credit accommodations is suspended from being recognized in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. When a credit accommodation is upgraded to a current status, the suspended interest is
released to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

2.4 Fees and commission income

Unless included in the effective interest calculation in (c) above, fees and commissions arc generally recognized on an accrual
basis when the service has been provided. Loan appraisal fees for loans that have been or are likely to be drawn down are
deferred and recognized over the period of the loan using the effective interest method. Fees and commission expense are
deferred and recognized on an accruals basis when incurred.

2.5 Foreign currency transactions

On initial recognition, all transactions are recorded in the functional currency (the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates), which is Tanzanian Shillings.

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are converted into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing
at the transaction date. Monetaryassctsmdﬁabiﬁﬁwatthestatememofﬁmncialposiﬁondawdemnﬁnaiedinforeign
currencies are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing as at that date. The resulting foreign
exchangegainsandlosscsfrunthesctﬂaneruofsuchtmnsactionsandﬁ-omyear-mdmnslaﬁonarerecognizedouanetbasis
in the statement of comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

2.6 Financial instruments
Classification
Financial instruments held during the year were classified as follows:

- Demand and term deposits with banking institutions. loans & advances and other assets were classified as 'loans and
receivables'.

- Government securities were classified as 'held-to-maturity investments'.

- Borrowings, trade and other liabilities including customer deposits were classified as financial liabilities.

Recognition and measurement
2.6.1 Financial assets:

Financial assets are any assets that is cash, a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from another financial
instimﬁon,acomractualﬁghWexchangcﬁnandalmsuunwm“dthmothamsﬁmﬁmmdﬁwndiﬁmsthmmpownﬁaﬂy
favorable or equity instrument of another enterprise.

The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following categories: Financial assets at fair value through statement of
comprehensive income; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale financial assets.
Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition.
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3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.6.1 Financial assets:(continued)

i. Financial asset at fair value through statement of comprehensive income
TheBankassess&sMeachﬁmncidposﬂimwhuhmMBobjwﬁveeﬂdenceMaﬁmnmnssetismpaiwd. If any such
evidenceexisls.animpairmcntlossismoog:ﬁsed.hnpainmntlossistheammmbywlﬁchﬂmcarryingmnountofanasset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In the case of held-to-maturity investments and loans and receivables, the recoverable amount
is the present value of the expected future cash flows, discounted using the asset's effective interest rate.

Aprovisionforunjdmﬁﬁedloanimpairmmtismblishedtooowrlossesthatarejudgedtobepmltinﬂ:elmdmgportfoﬁo
at the statement of financial position date, but which have not been specifically identified as such. This provision is based on
available historical experience and experienced judgment.

When a loan is deemed uncollectible, it is written off against the related provision for impairments. Subsequent recoveries are
credited to the provision for loan losses in the statement of comprehensive mcome. If the amount of the impairment
subsequentlydccreasesduetoanevenloccurﬁngaﬁerﬂtewﬁte—down,ﬂ:erelmeofﬂ:epmvisioniscmditedasareducﬁonof
the provision for impairment in the statement of comprehensive income.

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment or individually significant and whose terms have been

rmegotiatedarenolongercousideredtobepastduebmaren'eatedasncwloans.Insubsequentymrs,therenegotiatedterms
apply in determining whether the asset is considered to be past due.
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2.6 Financial instruments (continued)

2.6.1.1 Recognition of financial assets

Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognized when the right to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or when the bank has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership.

2.6.1.2 Statutory loan loss provision

Where impairment losses required by the regulators exceed those computed under IFRS, the excess is recognized as a statutory
loan loss reserve and is accounted for as an appropriation of retained earnings. The statutory loan loss reserve is not
distributable.

2.6.1.3 General provision reserves

General provisions, recorded as general reserves, are based on 1% of loans and other risk assets classified as current. General
provision is part of tier 2 capital as opposed to statutory reserve. The definition of other risk assets is provided in the Banking
and Financial Institutions (Management of Risk Assets) Regulation 2014 to mean Total Assets of a bank MINUS its loans,
cash, gold, amounts due from the Bank. Government securities, securities issued by the Bank of Tanzania. Government
securities issued by other Government institutions which are unconditionally guaranteed by the Government as to repayment
of principal and interest at maturity date, bank premises, furniture and equipment, and such other assets as may be declared by
the Bank as non-risk.

2.6.1.4 Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from these assets have ceased to exist
or the assets have been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets are also transferred
(tha(is,i.fsubﬂtanﬁ.all.yaIltbcﬁsksmdmwmdshawbwn&msfermiﬂw&nkmmnhdmmsm&almﬁnning
involvement on the basis of any retained powers of control does not prevent derecognition). Financial liabilitics arc
derecognised when thev have been redeemed or otherwise extineuished.

2.6.2 Financial liabilities:

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value of the consideration given plus the transaction cost.

Subsequently, all financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.6.2.1 Presentation

All financial assets are classified as non-current except. those with maturitics of less than 12 months from the financial
position date, those which the directors have expressed intention of holding for less than 12 months from the financial position
date or those that are required to be sold to raise operating capital, in which case they are classified as current assets.

All financial liabilities are classified as non-current except, those expected io be seftled in the company's normal operating
c}v.:le,thnsepayablcDrexpcmdmbcpaidwithin12mon1hsofﬂ:eﬁnancialpusiﬁondatemdﬂ:os:whichthecompmydoeﬂ
not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months affer the financial position date.

2.6.2.2 Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to reccive cash flows from the investments have expired or the company has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are derecognised only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

2.6.2.3 Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, o realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.7 Property and equipment

All categories of property and equipments are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Subsequent costs are includ d in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefit associated with the asset will flow to the bank for more than one year. All other repairs
and maintenance expenses are charged to the statement of comprehensive income.

Depreciation is provided in full in the month of additions. No depreciation is provided in the month of sale/disposal.
Depmciaﬁmiscdmdsﬁedbwﬁteoﬂ'ﬂmwstofﬂwfmedasuﬁnverﬂwirwﬁmﬂeduscﬂ.l]li\rcs.asfo]]m:

Rate Method
Computers and software 33.33% Straight line
Vehicles 33.33% Straight line
Furniture & fitting 12.50% Reducing balance
Leasehold improvement 12.50% Reducing balance
Office equipment 12.50% Reducing balance

Pmpmyandequipmcntmpaiodiwl!yrw‘wwedfmimwinmntthrcdiewryingamoumofmassetisgmtcrﬂmnits
estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposal of
pmpmyandeql.lipmentmdetm‘nﬁnedbymfmcemthdrwnhgammmtmdmwhnimomuﬂindﬂmninmg
operating profit.
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2.8 Other accounting policies

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

h)

Acceptances, guarantees and letters of credits
Acceptances, guarantees and letters of credit are accounted for as off balance sheet transactions and disclosed as

Leases
Leasesofassetswhcreasiyﬁﬁcantpmportionofﬂwrisksmdrewardsofownershipmretainedbymelessoram
classified as operating leases. PaymenismadeundaopﬂaﬁngleasesmchargedmmestMememofwmprehensive
income on a straight line basis over the lease period. Prepaid operating lease rentals are recognized as assets and are
subsequently amortized over the lease period.

Cash and cash eauivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid
investments with maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition, including, cash and balance with Bank
ofTanzania,andamoumtsdueﬁnmo&mbanks.Cashandcasheqnivalentexcludmthecashreserverequirementheld
with Bank of Tanzama.

Income taxes
Inmmetaxexpenseismeaggregmemmmwwgedf(mdiwd)mrwpectofcmemmxwddefmdmxmdemmmmg
the profit or loss for the year. Tax is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income except when it relates to
items recognized in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income, or to
items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is also recognized directly in equity.
Cmrentincometaxistheamounlofimometaxpayableomheproﬁtfortheyeardeiemimdinaocordancewiththe
Tanzania Income Tax Act.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method. for all temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes. Tax rates cnacted or
substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date and expected to apply when the related deferred tax
asset is realized or the deferred tax liability is settled: are used to determine deferred tax.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which temporarv differences can be utilized.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present legal or contractual obligation as a result of past events,
which will result in an economic outflow and where a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Employee benefits

Aﬂshontmmunployeebmﬁtsmpm\ddedformtheimomestamtonacmal basis. Further, employees are
members of a defined benefit scheme, employees contribute ten percent of their salary and employer contributes ten
percent of the employees' salary to the scheme. The employers’ portion is accounted for in the period it falls due.

Comparatives
Whmevermmsary,oompamﬁveﬁgureshavebeenregoupedtocmﬁmtothechangesinthepreserﬂaﬁminths
current year.

Statutory reserves

Where impairment losses required by the regulators exceed those computed under IFRS, the excess is recognized as a
statutory loan loss reserve and is accounted for as an appropriation of retained earnings. The statutory loan loss rescrve
is not distributable.
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3 RISK MANAGEMENT

Operating in a liberalized and globalised environment, bank is exposed to different types of risks emanating from financial
and non-financial factors. Risks faced by the bank have been categorized as credit risk. market risk and liquidity risk.

a) Credit risk

Credit risk is a risk of loss due to the inability or un-willingness of a client or the guarantors to meet their obligations.
Credit risk is a major risk faced by the bank. In order to manage this risk, the Board has designed a credit policy for the
bank, which is documented and forms basis for all credit approval decisions. The bank also controls this risk by limiting
exposure to one borrower or a group of borrowers, geographical area, industrial segments, etc.

Regular audit of credit process is undertaken by the internal audit. The classification of advances based on the overdue
balances, showing exposure to credit risk, is given below:-

Particulars Gross loans and Secured Unsecured
advances (including
(including interest unrecovered
in suspense) interest)
TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000

Year ended 31 December 2021
Fully performing 143,771,477 122,828,890 20,942,587
Sub Standard 2,771,595 2,769,243 2.352
Doubtful 949,471 749,774 199,697
Loss 807,037 585,714 221,323
lﬁ”gﬂ 126.933!621 21 958

Year ended 31 2020
Fully performing 131,530,301 113,206,283 18,324,018
Sub Standard 446,447 367,131 79.316
Doubtful 5,022 5.022 -
Loss 2,490,145 2.488.984 1,161
134,471,915 116,067,420 18,404,495

The bank is holding an impairment provision of TZS 757,831,479 (2020 TZS 1,688,950.435) against the gross loans
and advance.

b) Market risk

The bank is exposed to market risk. Market risk arises from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity
products. The Board sets limits and reviews it at regular interval based on the risk that may be accepted. Further, the
exposure is monitored on a daily basis.

i) Interest rate risk

The bank is exposed to various risks associated with the effect of fluctuation in the prevailing levels of market interest
rates on its financial position and cash flow. The bank has the discretion to change the rates on deposits, loans and
advances in line with changes in markct trend. These measures minimize the bank’s exposure to interest rate risk. Refer
4(c) for exposure on the interest rate risk.

ii) Currency risk

The bank is exposed to the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rate. The bank is involved in foreign currency market only to the extent of buying and selling to the extent of required
currency. The bank is not involved in foreign currency forward contracts and thus the risk is limited. Refer to 4(a) on
exposure to currency risk.
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3 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
b) Market risk (continued)
iii) Liquidity risk
The bank is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from over night deposits, current ts, maturing deposits, loans drawn and guarantces, from margin
and other calls on cash settlement. The Board has set limit based on their experience of the minimum proportion of maturing funds available to meet such calls and on the
minimum level of inter-bank and other borrowing facility that should be in place to cover withdrawals at unexpected levels of demand.

4 RISK MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES

A Foreign exchange risk

USD GBP EURO INR TOTAL
Year ended 31 December 2021 TZS '000 TZS "000 TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000
Eoreign currency assets
Cash 1.934.896 64,122 141,972 - 2,140,990
Bank Balances in current account 12,096,737 36,650 244,888 70,758 12,449,033
Loans and advances 96,679,732 - - - 96,679,732
Cheques and item for clearing (38,149) - - (38,149)
Other assets 486,213 188 1,449 - 487.850
Total 111,159,429 100,960 388,309 70,758 111.719.456
Forsi fiabiliti
Deposits 87.284.414 697,733 1,678 - 87,983,825
Letter of credit 303,328 - - - 303.328
Guarantces 79,939 - - - 79,930
Other liabilities 22302823 4.360 235 - 22307.418
Total 109.970,504 702,093 1.913 - 110.674.510
Net open long/(short) position 1,188,925 (601.133) 386,396 70,758 1.044,946
Net open long position 1,188,925 - 386,396 70,758 1,646,079
Net open short position - (601,133) - - (601,133)
Net open position 1,188,925 601,133 386,396 70,758 1,044,946
Core capital 43,176,795 43,176,795 43,176,795 43,176,795 43,176,795
Maximum allowable exposure (7.5% of core capital) 3.238.260 3,238,260 3,238,260 3,238.260 3,238,260
Over { (under) esposure (2,049,335) (2.637.127) (2.851,864) (3.167.502) (2,193,314)
Year ended 31 December 2020
Forcien currcncy asscts
Cash 2,023,522 48,003 123,335 - 2,194,860
Bank Balances in current account 18,705,742 278,256 937,885 66,710 19,988,503
Loans and advances 80,668,760 - - - 80,668,760
Cheques and item for clearing 38,638 - - - 38,638
Other assets - 268 1,495 - 1.763
Total 101,436,662 326,527 1.062.715 66,710 102.892.614
Forei liabiliti
Deposits 77,348,954 388.299 803,108 - 78,540,361
Letter of credit 229,386 - 12,478 241.864
Guarantees 52273 - - 52,273
Other liabilities 23,209,824 4.352 49,524 - 23.263.700
Total 100.840.437 392,651 865.110 - 102.098,198
Net open long/(short) position 596,225 (66,124) 197.605 66,710 794,416
et open long position 596,225 - 197.605 66,710 860,540
Net open short position - (66,124) - - 66,124
Net open position 596,225 66,124 197,605 66,710 794,416
Core capital 42.283.612 42,283.612 42,283,612 42,283,612 42,283,612
Maximum allowable exposure (7.5% of core capital) 317127 3171271 3,171,271 3,171,271 3.171.271
Over / (under) exposure (2.575.046) (3.105,147) (2.973.666) (3.104.561) (2.376.855)
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RISK MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

4

B Liquidity risk

Year ended 31 December 2021
Assets

Cash and balances with BoT and
other financial institutions
Government securities

Loans and advances

Other assets

Total

Liabiliti
Customer deposits
Deposits from other banks
Other liabilities

Total

Net liquidity gap

Year ended 31 December 2020
Assets

Cash and balances with BoT and
other financial institutions
Government securities

Loans and advances

Other assets

Total

iabiliti
Customer deposits
Deposits from other banks
Other liabilities
Total
Net liquidity gap

Noles lo Financial Statements

(Amount TZS '000)

Up to 1 month lto3months 3t06 months 6 to 12 months lto2years 2to3years 3to5years Over35 Years TOTAL
TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS'000  TZS'000 TZS'000 TZS'000  TZS'000
33,736,277 7,131,640 10,554,858 - - - - - 51,422,775
- - 6,600,587 4,107,450 904,314 4,700,120 180,978 4,992,888 21,486,337
11,643,616 13,897,284 66,676,416 7,308,530 5,311,433 14,244,700 25,274,364 2,915,714 147,272,057
7,000,512 - - - - - - 1,945,011 8,045,523
52,380,405 21,028,924 83.831.861 11,415,980 6,215,747 18,944,820 25,455,342 9.853,614 229,126,692
63,037,182 20,487,292 16,334,512 45,159,820 10,005,686 2,089,529 - - 157.114,021
21,596 21,369,633 - - - - - - 21,391,229
4,374,182 847,300 39,941 - 275,698 - - - 5,537,130
67,432,960 42,704,234 16,374,453 45,159.820 10,281,384 2,089,529 - - 184,042,380
(15,052,555) __ (21.675.309) 67.457.408 (33,743 840) _ (4.065.637) _16.855.291 25,455,342 9853614 45084312
30,133,820 12,350,132 10,172,330 55,845 - - - - 52,712,127
- 854,000 3,559,635 2,699,958 7,707,515 - 4,368,348 1,090,416 20,279,872
47,057,092 4,063,976 42,119,110 22,092,973 4,681,242 11,809,217 923,365 - 132,746,975
3,670,016 - - - - - - 2,263,522 5,933,537
80,860,927 17,268,108 55,851,075 24,848,776 12,388,757 11,809,217 5,291,713 3,353,938 211,672,511
49,352,442 24,343,925 16,640.813 39,521,700 10,685,858 71,214 50,405 - 140,666,356
21,117 24,235,031 - - - . - - 24,256,148
3,594,829 - - - - - - - 3.594.829
52,968,388 48,578,956 16,640,813 39,521,700 10,685,858 71,214 50,405 - 168,517,334
27,892,538 31,310,848 39.210,263 14,672,924 1.702.900 _11.738.003 __ 5.241.308 3,353,938 43.155.178
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RISK MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
C Interest rate risk

Year ended 31 December 2021
Assets

Cash and balances with BoT and other
financial institutions

Government securities

Loans and advances

Other assets

Total

Liabiliti

Customer deposits
Deposits from other banks
Other liabilities

Total

Interest sensitivity gap

Year ended 31 December 2020
Assets

Cash and balances with BoT and other
financial institutions

Government securities

Loans and advances

Other assets

Total

Liabilities

Customer deposits
Deposits from other banks
Other liabilities

Total

Interest sensitivity gap

Notes to Financial Statements

Uptol month 1to3months 3to6months 6 to 12 months Over 1 Year Non Interest Bearing TOTAL
TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000
33,484,900 1,097,125 3,392,729 - - 13,448,021 51.422.775
& = - 1,781,924 18.202.936 1,501,477 21,486,337
11,643,616 13.897.284 66,676,416 7.308.530 47,746,211 - 147,272,057
i - i - - 8,945,523 8,945,523
45,128,516 14,994,409 70,069,145 9,090,454 65,949,147 23,895,021 229,126,692
59,252,429 22,133,158 17,646,761 48,787,777 7,006,671 2,287,225 157,114,021
21,596 5,284,963 4,595,620 11,489,050 - - 21,391,229

- - - - - 5,537,130 5,537.130
59,274,025 27,418,121 22,242 381 60.,276.827 7,006,671 7.824.355 184,042,380
_47.826.764 16.070.666 45.084.312

29,030,030 1,350,132 5,172,330 - - 17,159,635 52,712,127
- 822,452 2,754,634 3,385,809 11,634,339 1,682,638 20,279,872
20,820,129 14,063,976 42,119,110 8,092,973 37.413,823 10,236,964 132,746,975
- o . 2 - 5,933,537 5,933,537
49,850,159 16,236,560 50,046,074 11,478,782 49,048,162 35,012,774 211,672,511
66,517,116 44343925 16,640,813 9,521.700 807,477 2,835,326 140,666,356
21,117 1,250,484 11,492,273 11,492,274 - - 24,256,148

= . = = - 3.,594.829 3,594,829
66,538,233 45,594,409 28.133.086 21.013,974 807.477 6,430.155 168.517.333
16,688.074 29.357.849 21912988 9.535.192 48.240.685 28.582.619 43,155,178
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4 RISK MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
D Sensitivity analysis

i) [Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

The impact on the profit after tax arising on a 5% increase or decrease n interest rates would be as follows:

2021 2020

TZS '000 TZS '000

+ 5% movement 1,015,478 510,040
- 5% movement (1.015.478) 55 10!040!

ii) Foreign exchange risk sensitivity analysis
The impact on the profit after tax arising on a 5% fluctuation in the bank's major operating currencies would be as

follows:
2021 2020
USD GBP EURO USD GBP EURO
TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000
+ 5% movement 41,612  (2,103,966) 13,524 20,868 (2.314) 6,916
- 5% movement (41.612) 2,103,966 (13.524) (20.868) 2314 l 619 16 !

5 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The bank’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the “equity” on the face of the statement of

financial position are:

= To comply with the capital requirement set by the regulator;

= To safeguard the bank’s ability to continue as going concemn so that it can continue to provide returns to share holders
and benefits to other stake holders; and

> To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored daily by the bank’s management, employing techniques

based on the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented by the Bank of Tanzania (BoT), for supervision

purposes. The required information is filed with the BoT on a quarterly basis.

The BoT requires each bank to:

i) Hold a minimum level of core capital of TZS 15 billion;

i) Maintain a ratio of core capital to the risk-weighted assets plus risk weighted off-balance sheet at or above the required
minimum of 12.5%; and

iii) Maintain total capital of not less than 14.5% or risk weighted assets plus risk-weighted off balances sheet items.

The bank’s regulatory capital as managed by its management is divided into two tiers:
Tier 1 capital: - Share capital, retained earnings and reserves created by appropriation of retained earnings. Prepaid
expenses and deferred charges are deducted in arriving at Tier 1 Capital.

Tier 2 capital: - Qualifying subordinate loan capital, collective impairment allowances and unrealized gains arising on the
fair valuation of equity instruments held as available for sale.

The risk-weighted assets are ensured by means of a hierarchy of five risk weights classified according to the nature and
reflecting an estimate of credit, market and other risk associated with each asset and counterparty, taking into account any
eligible collateral or guarantees. A similar treatment is adopted for off-balance sheet exposure, with some adjustments to
reflect the more contingent nature of the potential losses.
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§ CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The table that follows summarizes the composition of regulatory capital and the ratios of the bank for the year ending

on 31 December 2021.

2021 2020
TZS '000 TZS '000

Paid up ordinary share capital 10.000.000 10,000,000
Retained earnings 31.875.824 28,607,318
Qualifying period profits 2,084 457 3,626,990
Sub Total (A) 43,960,281 42,234,308
Deferred tax assets 203,519 481,134
Pre-paid Expenses 359,204 390,431
Sub Total (B) 562,723 871,565
TIER I CAPITAL (A - B) 43,397,558 41.362,743
TIER II CAPITAL
Revaluation Reserves 111,930 111,930
General provision on standard assets = “

111,930 111,930
TOTAL REGULATORY CAPITAL 43,509,488 41,474,673
RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS
On balance sheet (Form 16-1-S15(i)) 142,670,625 130,076,536
Off balance sheet (Form 16-1-S15(ii)) 21,246,509 10,544,976
Market Risk (100/12 of Form 16-1-S15(jii)) 1,259,683 449,996
Operational risk position (Form 16 16-1-15(vi) 9.564,068 9,564,630
TOTAL RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS 174,740,885 150,636,138

Requirement as Actual on 31

Year ended 31 December 2021 per BOT December
Ratio of core capital (Tier 1) to total risk weighted assets 12.5% 24.84%
Ratio of total capital (Tier 1 plus Tier II) to total risk weighted assets 14.5% 24.90%
Year ended 31 December 2020
Ratio of core capital (Tier 1) to total risk weighted assets 12.5% 27.46%
Ratio of total capital (Tier 1 plus Tier II) to total risk weighted assets 14.5% 27.53%
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6 INTEREST INCOME
Interest on loans and advances
Interest on government securities
Interest on deposits and bank balances
Ho Interest Earned

7 INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on Other Banks Deposits
Interest on other - non bank deposits
Interest on saving account deposits
Interest on term deposit accounts *
Interest on others

J1-Dec-21  31-Dec-20

TZS'000  TZS'000
11,780,541 11,432,313
2,129,142 2,506,926
1.640.455 1,226,559
14,384

15,564,522 15,165,798

278,046 255,680
37.452 47,387
242,460 241,946

5.503,004  4.772,049
141385 -

* Interest on interbank deposits amounting to TZS278.046.000 (205(-): 255,680,000) has been

included with interest paid on term deposits.
8 FEES & COMMISSION

Fees

Commissions

(a) Foreign exchange gain

OTHER INCOME

(b) Swift Charges (Income)
Others(Recoveries)
Others(Recoveries)

9 OPERATING EXPENSES

Commission expense

Employment cost

Of which ~ Salaries
Post Employment Benefits
Other staff benefits
Staff training and recruitment

Rental expenses on premises and equipment
Rates and taxes

Lighting

Advertisement

Donations

Depreciation (Note 17)
Depreciation On Right of Use Asset
Interest on Lease Liability
Postages, telephones and swift charges
Repairs and maintenance

Insurance

Entertainment expenses

Directors' fees

Auditors remuneration

Legal fees

Sundry charges

Computer and software expenses
Management fees

Consultancy fees

Amortisation Of Premium On Htm
Penal Provision utilized

Fraud Written Off

10 PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS
Provision / (Recovery) for Bad and Doubtful Debts

BAD DEBTS WRITTEN OFF
Bad debts written off

43

100,403 177,525
1,155,845 824,512

1236248 T.002.036

498,597 429,805
498,597 429,805

46,569 46,186
46,990 12,912

93,559 59,098

14,863 32,357
2,746,239 2,269,253
2,022,831 1,640,262

240,670 191,502

445,159 419,685
37,579 17,803
(8,102) 2,215

490,149 373,961
138,225 142,325
44,150 59,711
87,618 52,632
95,000 20,420

379,408 232231

563,160 609,753

11,286 69,793
36,708 40,459
400,626 311,612
332229 213,583
55,802 43,999

46,535 40,177
40,809 53,574

8 905
81.530 73,058

133,567 100,380
304,735 390,831
48,576 22,109

549 128
50,000 21,877

5 51,085
6,093,661 5,228,427

666.489 895,730
666,489 895,730

894,744 33.695
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31-Dec-21 31-Dee-20

11 TAX EXPENSE TZS '000 TZS '000
Current income tax 1,305,497 1,697,168
Prior vear tax 15,026
Deferred income tax 277,615 (142,334)

1,598,138 1,554,834

Additional Tax-prior period taxes assessed = -
Current Period Tax 1,598,138 1,554,834

The tax on the company's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
statutory income tax rate as follows:

Profit before income tax 3,682,595 5,181,824
Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate of 30% 1,104,778 1,554.547
Tax effect of:
Undercharge of prior period corporate tax 15.026 -
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 541359 548,852
Allowable expenses for Tax Purposes (340,640) (406.231)
Deductible temporary difference 277,615 (142.334)
Income tax expense 1,598,138 1,554,834
12 CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANK OF TANZANIA
Cash balances 3,675,929 3,545,227
Balances with Bank of Tanzania
-Restricted balances (Statutory Minimum Reserve) 9,772,092 9,012,869
-Unrestricted balances 1,671,182 5.171,238

15,119,203 17,729,334
The StamtoryMﬁﬁmumReservcisnm-mmestbeaﬁngmdisbasedmthewlueufmmdeposits adjusted
in accordance with Bank of Tanzania requirements. As at 31st December 2021 the Statutory Minimum Reserve
requirement was 6% of the Non-Government average deposit and 20% of the central government average
deposits. These funds are not available to finance the bank's day to day operations.

31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
13 DEPOSIT AND BALANCES DUE FROM BANKING INSTITUTIONS TZS 000 TZS 000

Nostro accounts 4,399,668 6,449,736
Balances with other banks in Tanzania 31.952.992 28,672,893
Interest Receivable on Placements 96,128 57.090
36,445,738 35.1 7§,”8
Less: Provision for Impairment 145,216 196,925
72 D82,
Balances with original maturity of not exceeding 90 days 32.070.813 30,750,033

Balances with original maturity of above 90 days 4,232,760 4:5321760
,303.5 34,982,

14 GOVERNMENT SECURITIES

Treasury bills 564,780 3,411,840
Treasury bonds 19,420,080 15,185,394
Unearned discount on treasury bonds 717438 823,424
Interest receivables on treasury bonds 657,830 543,661
Interest receivables on treasury bills 126,210 315,554
21,486,337 20,279,872
Less: Provision for Impairment 46 -
21,4 20,2
Treasury bills and bonds
Original maturing within 3 months from the date of acquisition - -
Original maturing afier 3 months from the date of acquisition 21,486,291 20,279,872

21,486.291 20,279,872
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31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TZS '000 TZS '000
For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent
comprise of the following:
Cash and balances with Bank of Tanzania excluding SMR (Note 11) 5,347,111 8,716,465
Deposits and balances due from banking institutions (Note 12) 32,070,813 30,750,033
Government securities with original Maturity within three Months -
(Note 13)
Unearned Discount receivable within three months -
37,417,924 39,466,499
16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
Corporate loans 125,674,052 114,985,370
Personal loans 20,453,273 17,746,749
Personal loan to staff 912,692 657,746
Staff housing loan 156,980 .
Total loans and advances 147,196,997 133,389,865
Accrued interest on loans & advances 1,102,582 1,082,050
Gross loans and advances 148,299,579 134,471,915
— ———————————————
Less:
Provision for impairment on loans and advances (612,570) (1,492,026)
Interest in suspense (414,953) (232,915)
Net loans and advances to customers 147,272,057 132,746,975
———————
17 CURRENT TAX ASSET
Tax Paid In Advance 4,155,104 1,911,340
4,155,104 1,911,340
ZZa0DA />
Q% XN
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NOTES (CONTINUED)
Furniture and Leasehold Office
21 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT Computer Vehicles Fittings  improvements equipments Total
TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000

At the beginning (01/01/2020) 193,157 64,900 686,653 452,136 87,200 1,484,046
Additions 27,185 - 1,119,815 - - 1,147,000
Disposals/write off - 18,500 - - - 18,500
At 31st December 2020 220,341 46,400 1,806,469 452,136 87,200 2,612,546
At the beginning (01/01/2021) 220,341 46,400 1,806,469 452,136 87.200 2,612,546
Additions 41,908 2,500 12,442 4,044 - 60,894
Disposals/write off # # « & - =
At 31st December 2021 262,249 48.900 1,818,911 456,180 87,200 2,673,440
DEPRECIATION
(Rate of Depreciation %) 33.33% 33.00% 12.50% 12.50% 12.50%
(Method of Depreciation %) SLM SLM Reducing Reducing Reducing Total
At the beginning (01/01/2021) 118,991 27,087 129,692 56,768 16,487 349,025
Depreciation for the period 97,942 12,971 199,164 61,060 8,268 379,404
Adjustment(Charge on Disposal) = » & - :J 5
At 31st December 2021 216,933 40,058 328,856 117,828 24,755 728,429
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31st December 2020 101,350 19,313 1,676,777 395,368 70,713 2,263,522
At 31st December 2021 45,316 8.842 1,490,055 338,352 62,445 1,945,011
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18 OTHER ASSETS
Suspense accounts - general
Prepaid expenses
Others

19 RIGHT OF USE ASSET
As at 1st January
NHC Lease

Accumulated Depreciation added back

Depreciation expense
Skyway lease
As at 31st December

20 LEASE LIABILITY
As at 1st January
NHC Lease

Change as per reduction in cashflow

Accrued interest
Payment towards lease liability

Skyway lease
Accrued Interest

Notes to Financial Statements

31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
TZS '000 TZS '000
66,386 58,780
359,204 390,431
579.219 213,512
Iw 662!723
614,819 994,055
- 240,721.34
= (10,204.52)
(563,160) (609,753)
1,585.422
1£37!081 61 4é19
595,953 1,032,402
- 240,721
. (20,210)
= (78,660)
(653,772) (578.299)
1,585,422 -
11,286 =
1|§§!£ 595!23
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31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Parties are considered to be related if the party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial or operational decisions. In the normal course of business, a number of banking transactions are entered into
with related parties i.e. key management personnel and directors. These includes deposits and loans and advances.

The volume of related party transactions for the year and the outstanding amounts at the year-end were as follows;

Loans and advances

There were no loans and advances to related parties other than key management team during the year 2021 (2020: Nil). There were no
deposits from companies controlled by Directors, shareholders or their families (2020: Nil).

a) Loans and advances to key management team TZS '000 TZS "000
At 1 January 235,852 119279
Advanced during the year 649,656 195,800
Repayment during the year -359.017 -79%27
At 31 December 526,497 :

There were no loans and advances to related parties other than key management team during the vear 2021 (2020: Nil). There were no
deposits from companies controlled by Directors, shareholders or their families (2020: Nil).

Deposits

There were no loans and advances to related parties other than key management team during the year 2021 (2020: Nil). There were no
deposits from companies controlled by Directors, shareholders or their families (2020: Nil).

b)Deposits to Key management personnel TZS '000 TZS '000
At | January 21,307 75375
Advanced during the year 1,226,052 1,144 368
Repayment during the vear -1.134.892 -1.198.436
At 31 December IE:E? 21,307

The above deposits are unsecured; carry variable interest rates and are repayable on demand The deposits in current accounts do not
earn interest whilst those in savings accounts earn interest at the rate of 2% per annum. These transactions are carried out at arm’s
length. There were no deposits from companies controlled by Directors or their families (2020: Nil).

Key management compensation TZS '000 TZS "000
Salaries and allowances (short term employee benefits) 1,226,052 938,767
Other long-term benefits (post-employment benefits) 122,605 93,877

1,348,657 1,032,644

Key management personnel are described as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the Bank directly or indirectly. The bank's key management is the Managing Director and Deputy Managing Director
and heads of departments. Compensations of the Bank's key management personnel include basic salaries. transport allowances,
housing allowance, telephone allowance and post-employment benefits

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There were no other events after the reporting period which require adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

Items included in the financial statements of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited, a subsidiary of Bank of Baroda-India, are measured
using the currency of primary economic environment in which the bank operates (the fuctional currency). The financial statements are
presented in Tanzanian Shillings (TZS), which is the subsidiary's presentation and functional currecy. For group reporting however, the
presentation currecy is Indian Rupees (INR) while the functional currency remains the Tanzanian Shilling (TZS).

CONTIGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS TZS 000 TZS '"000
Letter of Credits 3,061,217 2,458,339
Guarantees 14,534,645 7,343,869
Undrawn balances 7,642,393 2,287.750

75.238.255 12,089,958

Letters of credit, guarantees, acceptances and undrawn amounts of unexpired overdraft lines and term loans are accounted for as off
balance sheet transactions and hence disclosed as contingent liabilities.

SHARE CAPITAL TZS "000 TZS '000

30.1 Regulatory Capital

Authorized share capital: 25,000,000 shares of TZS 1,000 each 25.000.000 25.000.000
25,000,000 25,000,000

30.2 Issued Capital

Issued and fully paid-up share Capital 10,000,000shares of TZS 1,000 each 10,000,000 10.000.000
10,000,000 T0, 000,000
30.3 Shareholders of the Bank Ordinary shares  Ordinary shares
Bank of Baroda-India 9.999,999 9,999,999
Suresh Gajjar 1 1

49




-'inam ial Statements 2021

Notes to Financial Statements

31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
22 CUSTOMER DEPOSITS TZS '000 TZS '000
Term deposits, current and savings account plus accrued interest 156,989,090 140,539,707
Current Accounts 24,207,903 24,012,837
Saving Accounts 25,873,529 27.409,829
Term Deposit Accounts 103,989,533 86,678,941
Special scheme savings account 124,931 126,651
Provision for interest on deposits 2.918.126 2,438,100
157,114,021 140,666,357
DEPOSIT AND BALANCES DUE TO BANKING INSTITUTIONS
Current Account 21.596 21,599
Fixed Deposit 21,369,633 24.234,549
21,391,229 24,256,148
TOTAL DEPOSITS 178,505,251 164,922,505
23 OTHER LIABILITIES
Bills payable 95,632 74.182
Unexpired Discount On Treasury 677 -
Withholding tax payable 42,495 45,853
Other payables 789.483 1,780,941
Inter Branch Accounts - Credit 187.845 21.994
1,116,133 1,922,970
24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
Deferred income tax is calculated using the enacted tax rate of 30% (2020: 30%). The movement on the deferred income tax account is
as follows:
At 1 January (481,134) (338.800)
Credit to statement of comprehensive income (Note 10) 277,615 (142,334)
At 31 December (203,519) (481,134)
Net deferred tax asset (156,038) 187.304
25 TAX LIABILITIES
Current Tax - Liability
Income Tax Payable 2.882.108 1.075.906

T 288,108 1075906

1

48



Bl inancial Statements 2021

Notes to Financial Statements

31 EARNINGS PER SHARE

31-Dec-21

31-Dec-20

Eamingspershm’earemlculatedbydividingthepmﬁtanﬁbmﬂmthesharemidersdthewbsidiarybymenumbﬂofordim

shares outstanding as at close of the year.

Earnings before taxation

Tax expense for the year

Profit attributable to sharcholders
Number of shares

Basic earning per share

TZS '000 TZS '000
3,682,595 5,181,825
(1.598,138) (1,554,834)
2,084,457 3,626,990
10.000,000 10.000.000
0.208 0.363

There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares outstanding as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). Diluted earnings per share is the

same as basic earnings per share.

32 CONTINGENT ASSETS

31-Dec-21

31-Dec-20

Thebankmaimainassetsmrespmtofexpamimmedmmmmmmﬁhwonmﬂedwmmtmwme
recovery of which is subject to case determination in favour of the Bank. The outstanding balances of the contingent assets as at the

end of the accounting period is as under;

At 1 January
Payment during the period
Recovery during the period
At 31 December
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TZS '000 TZS '000
528,812 528.812
142,419
671,231 528812




